ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COWM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
February 19, 2004
12:20 p. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representati ve Dan (Ogg

Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Kelly Wl f
Representative Les Gara
Representative Mary Kapsner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO 471
"An Act relating to the funding of public education; and
providing for an effective date."
- MOVED CSHB 471(EDU) OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 471

SHORT TI TLE: | NCREASE AMI OF BASE STUDENT ALLOCATI ON
SPONSOR( S):  EDUCATI ON

02/ 16/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H EDU, HES, FIN

02/ 17/ 04 (H EDU AT 11:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 17/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 17/ 04 (H M NUTE( EDU)

02/ 19/ 04 (H EDU AT 11:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

DEBORAH POCRE

Honmer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 471.

DAVI D JONES, Director

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -1- February 19, 2004



Fi nance Depart nent

Kodi ak | sl and Borough School District

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support HB 471.

M KE FORD
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 471.

KRI STEN ROMANCFF
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 471.

PETER BURCHELL
Wasil |l a, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 471.

RON RUCKER, President

Classified Staff Association

Mat anuska- Susi t na Bor ough School District
Wasi | | a, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 471.

KRl S MOORE

Val | ey Voices for Children

Wasilla, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 471.

JENNI E HAMMOND

Ni ki ski, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 471.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-11, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R CARL GATTO called the House Special Conmmttee on Education
neeting to order at 12:20 p.m Al menbers were present at the
call to order.

HB 471-1 NCREASE AMI' OF BASE STUDENT ALLOCATI ON

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HB 477]

CHAI R GATTO announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 471, "An Act relating to the funding of public

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 2- February 19, 2004



education; and providing for an effective date." [ n packets,
not adopted but treated as the working docunent, was a proposed
commttee substitute (C9S), Version  23-LS1645\H, M schel ,
2/ 18/ 04.]

Nunber 0121

REPRESENTATI VE GARA brought attention to Anendnent 1, | anguage
taken from HB 477 that read [original punctuation provided but
sone formatting changed]:

Del ete all |anguage; insert the foll ow ng:

* Section 1. AS 14.17.470 is anmended to read:

Sec. 14.17. 470. Base student allocation. The base student
allocation is $4,600. However, the departnent shall annually
increase the base student allocation to the extent of increases
during the second preceding cal endar year in the Consuner Price

| ndex for all urban consuners for the Anchorage Metropolitan
Area conpiled by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, United States
Departnent of Labor. The index for January 2002 is the

reference base index [$4, 169].

* Sec. 2. AS 14.17.470 is anended by adding a new subsection
to read: (b) After an increase, if any, to the base student
allocation wunder (a) of this section, the departnent shal
annually increase the base student allocation by two percent.
The increase under this subsection shall be used for either

(1) cl ass-size reduction; or
(2) conpliance with 20 U S.C. 6301 - 7941 (No Child Left
Behi nd Act of 2001).

* Sec. 3. AS 14.17.470(b) is repealed July 1, 2009.
* Sec. 4. This Act takes effect July 1, 2004.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA explained that Anmendnent 1 would convert

this bill to HB 477, which he and Representative Kapsner
sponsor ed. The change would result in an additional $43 per
student to the base student allocation over what HB 471
provi des. The amendnent would increase the fiscal note by $8
mllion.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA told nenbers the rationale is based on
comments nade by the school districts that HB 471 does a good
job by preventing additional layoffs this year and is |audable,
but does nothing to make up for all the layoffs |ast year. He

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 3- February 19, 2004



commented that funding has been going in the wong direction for
many years. The $8-million increase in funding would begin to
repair the damage school districts have suffered. The anmendnent
woul d continue to correct the damage by providing that funding
woul d continue to go up based on the Consuner Price Index [for
the Anchorage Metropolitan Area] and a 2 percent annual increase
until class sizes are reduced to an acceptable |evel.

Nunber 0220

CHAIR GATTO conmented that the $4,600 figure includes funding
for the PERS/TRS [shortfall], which is not an issue addressed in
the current bill. He told the nenmbers that inclusion of
PERS/ TRS funding conplicates the issue significantly, which is
the reason nenbers agreed to break out the TRS/ PERS funding from
the [base student allocation]. He suggested the TRS/ PERS i ssue
may be taken care of on a statewide basis in the House Finance
Commttee; if not, maybe it's sonething the current commttee
will deal with separately. He reiterated that inclusion of the
funding for the PERS/TRS [shortfall] is a wholly separate issue.

Number 0319

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noved to adopt Anendnment 1 [text provided
previously]. He said in response to Chair Gatto's conments that
he believes it is much nore appropriate to fund the PERS/ TRS
shortfall in the base student allocation because the sane issue
will conme up each year. He said [he doesn't question the
commttee nenbers support for education, but] believes there is
extra will on the part of other legislators in funding education
this year, because it is an election year. Another advantage of
including this in the base student allocation is that it would
increase the anmount of noney |local school districts can
contribute, he stated.

Number 0395

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked Chair Gatto to provide the
commttee with information regardi ng other vehicles available to
address PERS/ TRS.

CHAI R GATTO responded that a bill is being worked on that deals
with the PERS/TRS [shortfall]. He said he believes the House
Finance Commttee is considering handling the issue on a
statew de basis, and enphasized that the conversation is not yet
over. He assured nenbers that the issue wll be addressed
either in the House Finance Comrittee or in this conmttee.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -4- February 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER tol d nenbers she'll be voting in favor of
Amendnment 1 because it isn't known what w Il happen in the
future. She voiced strong support for the $4,600 figure.

Nunber 0496

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON stated that she is planning on introducing
a bill in the House Health, Education and Social Services
Standing Conmittee [which she chairs] that wll address the

PERS/ TRS [shortfall] if it is not handled in the House Finance
Commi ttee.

Number 0535

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said he opposes Amendnent 1. He expl ai ned
that the subconmmttee that brought HB 471 to the full commttee
has also wirked on a vehicle to address the PERS/ TRS
[shortfall]. The two bills work together as conpanion bills

The subcomm ttee has exami ned the inpact of running the PERS/ TRS
cost into the formula. He said sone schools benefited and sone

suffered. He commented that the subconmittee was not willing to
see sone school suffer to a great extent, so it was decided that
it could not be inserted in the formnula. He told the nenbers
the responsible thing to do is run the PERS/ TRS at cost so that
each district [is reinbursed for the cost of the shortfall]. He
said that was his reason for supporting two vehicles to address
t hese i ssues. Amendnment 1 would go against what the

subcommi ttee recommended to the full commttee, he added.
Nunmber 0680

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ained that the subcomrttee found that
by including the TRS/PERS in the foundation formula, sone
districts lost significant funding. For exanple, the North
Sl ope Borough School District would |ose [approximtely]
$400, 000 i n equi val ent paynent, while the Kenai Peninsula School
District would have gained $220,000 above its PERS/ TRS costs.
This change would create dramatic cost shifting. He stated that
he woul d vote agai nst the anendnent for those reasons.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER told the nmenbers she appreciates the work

the subcommttee did. She pointed out that another inportant
conponent of Anendnent 1 is that it addresses autonmatically
inflation-proofing the [base student allocation]. She said she

believes that in reviewing the actual dollars to schools, the

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 5- February 19, 2004



figure is a fraction of what it should be, especially in light
of the No Child Left Behind Act and exit exans.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON shared her belief that it is inportant to
keep the funding [for the base student allocation and the
PERS/ TRS shortfall] in separate bills because she doesn't want
to jeopardize funding for the base student allocation. She said
she does not know what the House Finance Conmittee will do if
the 2 percent annual increase is included in HB 471.

Number 0875

REPRESENTATI VE GARA clarified that [Amendnent 1] would provide
$8 mllion nmore than a separate PERS/TRS bill and HB 471 put
t oget her. He agreed that if HB 471 rolled in PERS/TRS, then a
smal | nunber of districts wouldn't receive enough noney to cover
their PERS/TRS shortfall. However, bringing the total base
student allocation up to $4,600 adds an extra $8 million into
the foundation formula, which gives every district in the state
enough noney to cover the TRS/ PERS shortfall and extra noney to
cover teacher shortages. If any school district were to be
short of funds to address the PERS/ TRS shortfall, then an
amendnent could be made on the floor to account for that, he
suggest ed.

Nunber 1012

CHAI R GATTO commented that the school districts that are at the
base level of 1.0, such as Anchorage and Matanuska-Susitna
school districts, would receive an adequate anmount to cover the
PERS/ TRS [shortfall]. He pointed out that if the TRS/ PERS
funding were in the fornmula, school districts in renote areas
woul d receive additional noney beyond their need to cover
PERS/ TRS. He stated it is a fairness issue. Since the cost is
exactly the sanme for each retiree across the state, it seens
nore appropriate to fund this as a statewi de issue, rather than
trying to have each district accountable for a portion when the
formula allots funding to each district differently.

Nunber 1112

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Gara and Kapsner
voted in favor of Anendnent 1. Representatives (Ogg, W] son,
Wl f, Seat on, and Gatto voted against it. Ther ef or e,

Amendnent 1 failed to be adopted by a vote of 2-5.

Number 1153

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 6- February 19, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE OGG noved to adopt Anendnent 2, a technical
anmendnent that would do the follow ng:

On page 1, line 7, after the words "of each year,"”
I nsert "beginning July 1, 2005,"

On page 1, line 8
Del ete "2005"
| nsert "2004"

REPRESENTATI VE OGG explained that there may have been sone
m scomruni cation in the drafting process of the proposed CS.

CHAIR GATTO asked if there was any objection to adopting
Amendnent 2. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

Nunber 1208

DEBORAH POORE testified in support of HB 471. She stated,
however, that she is concerned about the possibility of the
funds being diluted as it goes through the [legislative]
process. She warned that this funding level is not enough to
provi de schools with full funding. For ten years the schools in
the Kenai Peninsula Borough School District have been robbing
from their prograns to try to keep the schools in operation.
She said she believes it is inportant to regain the ground that
has been | ost. There needs to be stable, on going funding for
public education in Al aska, she enphasized. Ms. Poore told the
menbers that she [testified] a year ago that she would support
the inplenentation of a state incone tax to support public
educati on.

Nunber 1278

DAVID JONES, Director, Finance Departnent, Kodiak I|sland Borough
School District, testified on HB 471. He told the nenbers that
the increase in base student allocation enables the school
district to maintain the progranms in place for FY 04 for the
com ng Yyear. It will not undo the |osses from the previous
year, but it is a welcone thought that the district will be able
to maintain what it now has.

MR, JONES said the inflation-proofing provision in this bill

will be a great help because each year the district faces
increases in health insurance, workers' conpensation insurance,
and liability insurance increases. These increased costs are

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -7- February 19, 2004



cutting into the school district's budget so this [inflation
proofing nmeasure] is welcone. M. Jones said that each year the
district has |ooked at the progranms to decide what wll be cut
just to survive another year.

MR. JONES agreed that the TRS/ PERS issue should be addressed in
anot her bill. He rem nded nenbers that it is not a single-year
i ssue, but one that will need to be addressed repeatedly. He
closed by saying he is the father of three children in the
school system and wants them and their friends to have the best
educati on possible. He said he would be wlling to pay an
income tax or sone other kind of tax to ensure that happens.

Nunber 1432

M KE FORD testified that he is the parent of a second-grader in
the Juneau School District. He applauded the comrittee's action
by increasing funding for public education. He said he does not
believe the conmttee has gone far enough. In Juneau, the
increase will not bring the district to parity for the budget
t oday. There is still a budget gap. He said the PERS/ TRS
[shortfall] will be a recurring problem and it is significant.
M. Ford urged the nenbers to work on a solution that does not
require them revisiting the issue year after year. Sayi ng the

classroons in Juneau are very crowded, he urged the nenbers to
reduced the student-teacher ratio. He told the nenbers that he

would be willing to support a revenue neasure to support these
i ncreases.

Number 1520

KRI STEN ROVANOFF testified in support of HB 471, noting that she
has been volunteering weekly for the last three years. In her
son's kindergarten class there were 28 children with one teacher
and no aide. The pupil-teacher ratio is so high that it is
inmpacting the education of all the <children in the school
system This bill does not go far enough in educating students.

VWiile it is a step in the right direction, there needs to be
i ncreased funding. She said she believes the anendnent that was
proposed to bring education funding up to $4,600 per student
with the inclusion of PERS/ TRS woul d have been a good begi nni ng.

Nunber 1647
PETER BURCHELL, retired teacher, testified on HB 471. He said

the proposed increase won't neet the needs of the Matanuska-
Susi tna Borough School District. He also expressed concern that

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 8- February 19, 2004



TRS/ PERS is operating on a one-week basis. When no inflation-
proofing is done and there is failure to plan ahead, then
districts end up with what the valley is experiencing now. M.
Burchell comented that Chair Gatto, as a former school board
menber, knows what the district has been cutting for nine years,
and now it is a desperate situation. He asked nenbers to pl ease
i nflation-proof education funding and include PERS/ TRS funding
so it won't have to be revisited next year.

Nunber 1725

RON RUCKER, President, Cassified Staff Association (CSA),
Mat anuska- Susi t na Borough School District, testified on HB 471.

He thanked nenbers for all their work on this bill. He said
since Tuesday's hearing he has had the opportunity to review the
nunbers discussed and wants to correct his statenent. M.

Rucker said contingent on the Matanuska-Susitna Borough's being
able to fund education to the maxi num anount, the district wll

be made whole for this year. It does not do anything to resolve
past years problens, however. M. Rucker said that in one way
it makes sense to handle the PERS/ TRS issue separately, but it
will be "a hanmer over the head" of the districts if the
| egi sl ature does not fund it in down years. He encouraged the

comrittee to consider the $4,600 figure again, so that it wll
give the districts sone | eeway.

Number 1792

CHAIR GATTO responded that M. Rucker knows that wth an
increase in the base student allocation, the local effort is

allowed to increase. It is currently at the cap, he stated.
Chair Gatto said he believes the increase would be approxi mately
$600, 000. That should not even cone close to solving the

problenms of the past seven to nine years, but it is a nove in
that direction.

MR. RUCKER concurr ed.

Number 1833

KRIS MOORE, Valley Voices for Children, testified in support of
HB 471. She thanked the commttee for their work. Thi s
increased funding will allow the schools to break even this
year. She commented that there is a long way to go and she
hopes the conmttee will continue to work on increased education
for the future. Ms. Moore said she appreciates the anendnent

that changes the effective date to July 1, 2004, rather than

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 9- February 19, 2004



July 1, 2005. She closed by saying nost of the people she talks
Wi th support incone tax as a way of paying for education.

Nunber 1937

JENNIE HAMMOND testified on HB 471. She commented that the
version of the bill in front of her would increase funding to
$4,422 and it does not say anything about PERS/ TRS. She asked
if that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA expl ained that [with Anendnent 1] the $4, 600
figure includes the PERS/TRS problem or if the PERS/ TRS probl em
were dealt with separately, then the figure would be $4,422.
Representative Gara said he believes it is nore inportant to
roll the PERS/TRS into the foundation fornula. That is the
reason for the | arger nunber

Nunmber 1995

M5. HAMMOND said while she supports addressing the PERS/ TRS
i ssue, an inportant benefit is that funding at the $4,600 figure
means the conmmunity can fund nore at the cap. Anot her benefit
is that the issue wouldn't have to conme back to the legislature
next year. She asked what the PERS/ TRS bill nunber is.

CHAIR GATTO responded that there is no bill nunber avail able
yet . A couple of options are being |ooked at. If the funding
is done strictly as a education bill, then it will be a $[35.7]
mllion grant. If it is done as a statewide grant, it wll be
significantly higher. He stated that the issue wll be
rectified one way or anot her.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that the conmttee is stil
waiting for a determnation from the Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnment on how the PERS/ TRS funding can be structured
so that PERS/ TRS contributions given to the districts can be
mat ched.

CHAI R GATTO reiterated Representative WIlson's earlier statenent
that this issue wll be addressed in the House Health, Education
and Social Services Standing Commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON commented that M. Hammond is fortunate
that the Kenai municipality funds the school system to the cap.
Many communities around the state, including Anchorage, do not
fund up to the cap, she said.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -10- February 19, 2004



Nunber 2138

REPRESENTATIVE OGG noved to report CSHB 471, Version 23-
LS1645\H, M schel, 2/18/04, as anended, out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and t he acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATIVE OGG asked if the nmenbers would |ike the
acconpanyi ng mnenorandum [addressing nethods of funding] to be
included with the bill

CHAI R GATTO responded that he believes the nenorandum could be
i ncluded without adding it to the [notion].

Number 2174

REPRESENTATI VE GARA objected for purposes of discussion. He
asked nmenbers to consider increasing the base student allocation
by $43 to address |last year's |losses. He added that he believes
the bill that is going forward is very responsible and he
appreciates working with the nenbers on this. Representati ve
Gara said he isn't going to put forth an anmendnent, but asked
menbers to consider this change and |eave aside the inflation-
proofing issue that sone are unconfortable wth.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.
Number 2233

CHAI R GATTO announced that w thout objection, CSHB 471(EDU) was
reported out of the House Special Comrttee on Educati on.

Nunber 2259

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked if the nenorandum on funding shoul d
acconpany HB 471. He explained that the letter says the
commttee assigned the issue to a subcommttee that held
extensive hearings, and there was persuasive testinony that the
education system could not sustain any further cuts. School
districts from around the state said the increase necessary to
hold districts "whole" was sonewhere between $380 and $400.
There was agreenent to use the $388 figure because that was the
figure provided by the Anchorage School District. There were
two bills considered. One bill was to fund the PERS/ TRS
[shortfall] of $35,789, 260. The intent was that this increase
woul d be allowed to count for purposes of the local contribution
funding caps, he said. He added that HB 471 funds $42.5
mllion, increases the student formula by $210, and codifies the

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -11- February 19, 2004



increase by July 1, [2004]. The cost of both bills is
$78, 289, 260.

REPRESENTATIVE OGG told nenbers it was requested that if the
House Special Conmttee on Education were to suggest nonies that
were not in the budget, then the commttee should suggest
sources for those nonies. He explained that two sources were
reconmended. One is utilization of the Constitutional Budget
Reserve excess from the FY 2004 appropriation, and the second is
the excess earnings from the Earnings Reserve Account of the

per manent fund. Representative (Ogg noted that the conmttee
wants it known that the University of Alaska also has an
unantici pated need for PERS/ TRS obligations. The nmenorandum

al so urges the House Finance Commttee to fund that need.
Nunber 2414

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON comrented that the university's PERS/ TRS
is set up different from [that in other parts of the state].
She explained that [with the shortfall], wuniversity enployees
must contribute, so the university does not have to pay back as
much. She pointed out that with general governnent, the state
must pay for all of the PERS/ TRS [shortfall].

CHAI R GATTO told nenbers the university asked for its TRS/ PERS
portion to be included in the House Special Commttee on
Education's bill. He commented that if the PERS/TRS issue is
handl ed statewi de, then this inclusion would not be necessary.
If it does not, then this is sonmething the commttee should
consi der.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA told the nenbers that the letter does not
reflect his views and he will not sign on to it. He said he
believes it is obvious that there is over $100 mllion in the
Constitutional Budget Reserve that the legislature and the
governor intended to spend last year, which was not spent

because of high oil prices. He commented that he agrees wth
that part of the letter. Representative Gara said he believes
there are nmany options [for funding] and he hopes it wll be

debated on the House fl oor.

CHAI R GATTO asked if Representative Gara is debating the fiscal
gap or the letter.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA responded that this letter is proposing to

solve the fiscal gap with permanent fund earnings. He said he
is not necessarily confortable with that. Representative Gara

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -12- February 19, 2004



summari zed that he believes the legislature will fail the public
if every single fiscal proposal is not out on the House floor
for open debate. He stated that he is not confortable agreeing
to only those that the [legislative] majority want.

Nunber 2567

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said she believes it is interesting that
this menmorandum recomends using the excess earnings from the
Earnings Reserve Account for the permanent fund, when people
have testified today that a tax would be appropriate. She
suggested nore vague |anguage or nore inclusive [language] wth
all revenue-generating options, including a road tax.

Nunber 2607
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that the menorandum suggests

two sources of revenue that are available to the legislature
right now He said this is not a question of addressing another

bill to establish a tax or to change a tax structure. These two
revenue sources are two funds that are currently available to
the legislature right now to fund an $80-nillion increase in
educati on funding. He told the nenbers he believes this
menorandum s appropriate. The letter does not suggest
addressing revenue sources at another tine. What is being
examned is what can be used now to address the increase in
f undi ng. That is the reason for the |anguage used in the

menor andum
Nunmber 2668

CHAIR GATTO comrented that a separate question mght be where
the nmoney will conme from in the future. [CSHB 471(EDU) was
reported fromconmttee.]

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Comrmittee on Education neeting was adjourned at 1:05
p. m

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -13- February 19, 2004



